Oak Park
Residence
Corporation

Kevin Jackson August 5, 2025
Village Manager

Village of Oak Park

123 Madison Street

Oak Park, IL 60302

2026 Funding for Small Condominium Management Program
Dear Mr. Jackson:

The Oak Park Residence Corporation (OPRC) proposes to continue leading the Small Condominium Management
Program (SCMP) and requests $47,500 to perform this role for 2026. In response to the Village’s request that the
program be expanded to include condominium associations up to 20 units we are requesting a $5,000 increase in
funding over last year This increase represents anticipated costs associated enhanced online resources for
program participants.

As requested by the Village, we are forwarding the following documents relative to the proposed 2026 funding:

Report on program accomplishments to date (Through June 30, 2025)
2024 of Audit of the Oak Park Residence Corporation

2026 SCMP budget

Narrative detailing planned program goals and activities for 2026.

PwnNPE

As in previous years, we are submitting the proposed 2026 SCMP budget which provides details of the cost of the
program. Beth Swaggerty, Program Coordinator, is the only property management professional assigned to the
program. We bill the Village for Beth’s coordination of the program, plus a small amount of other support services
provided, such as part-time administrative support and accounting services. There is no profit margin built into
our operation of the program.

The Small Condominium Management Program has been in place for 19 years and has made a significant
contribution to the Village’s ongoing support of the Condo Network. This strong and beneficial partnership
between the Village and OPRC has resulted in important foundational assistance to small condominium
associations, helping them to achieve stability where they, too often, would otherwise be at significant risk. OPRC
is pleased to contribute its professional property management expertise in service to this community. The
testimony of the condominium associations that have been assisted through the program bears witness to the
program’s success. We look forward to our continued partnership in 2026.

Sincerely,

A
A !\

David Pope

President

Cc: Jeff Prior
Noemy Diaz
Beth Swaggerty
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SCMP ACTIVITIES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS THROUGH 6/30/2025

Year-to-date, Ms. Swaggerty has worked closely with the following four (4) associations to
resolve specific issues, advance association objectives and provide further training in best
practices and processes for self-management.

511 N. Humphrey Condominium Association (511 N. Humphrey — 6 Units)
Cambridge Condominiums of Oak Park (916 S. Austin — 6 Units)

North Parkview Condominium Association (1329 N Harlem — 10 Units)
Brickwood East Condominium Association (431 S. East Ave. — 4 Units)

511 N. Humphrey Condominium Association

Year-to-date Ms. Swaggerty has provided individual training in fiduciary responsibilities
and association governance to the association’s president and training in financial record
keeping to the association’s new treasurer. Most recently she has provided guidance in the
disclosure documents the association must provide to the buyer’s attorney when a unit is
sold. The Treasurer has attended three of the program’s five online seminars year-to-date.

Cambridge Condominiums of Oak Park

Year-to-date, Ms. Swaggerty has worked closely with the association’s Treasurer to
ensure their financial records are accurate and being reconciled on a monthly basis. This
allows the association to measure their financial performance against their current budget
quarterly and adjust expenses and/or initiate collections on a timely basis. As a result, the
association is current on all of their expenses and has been able to establish a reserve
account of $12,000. Currently, Ms. Swaggerty is guiding the board through the process for
the collection of over $3,000 from a delinquent owner. This association’s Treasurer has
attended all six formal online seminars conducted so far this year.

North Parkview Condominium Association

Year-to-date, Ms. Swaggerty has been providing guidance and encouragement to board
members in following an action plan — created in late 2024 — to address critical needs,
including the collection of long delinquent assessments, and conducting regular and
effective board meetings. They have established greater transparency in decisions and
actions taken by the board and there has been a substantial decrease in conflict between
the board and owners. The board President has attended four of the formal online
seminars conducted so far this year.

21 South Blvd. e Oak Park e lllinois @ 60302 e (708) 386-6061
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Brickwood East Condominium Association

Year-to-date, Ms Swaggerty has been working closely with the Associations
President/Treasurer on best practices in bidding out capital improvement projects and
engaging new owners to participate on the board. The President/Treasurer of this four-unit
building has been doing the lion’s share of the management of the association and due to
her age is looking to step-down. Ms. Swaggerty has been providing guidance to the two
existing board members on owner engagement and recognizing leadership in others.

In addition to working with the four (4) associations listed above, Ms. Swaggerty spoke,
corresponded, and/or met independently with unit owners and/or board members of the
following associations on various issues including but not limited to, budgeting, elections
and annual meetings, fiduciary responsibilities of the board, owners’ rights to review
association records, collections, budgeting, association insurance, violation of rules and
regulations, notice requirements, self-management vs. professional management, the
lllinois Condominium Ombudsperson Act, and the increase in renters and subsequent
conflict within their buildings

330-332 S. Wesley Condominium Association (320-332 S. Wesley — 8 Units)

2 LeMoyne Parkway Condominium Association (2 LeMoyne — 6 Units)

109 S. Grove Condominium Association (109 S. Grove — 4 Units)

Courtyard Condominiums (406 Wisconsin - 10 Units)

Park Avenue Manor Condominium Association (10 Units)

Euclid Point Condominium Association (12 units)

409-411 Washington Ave. (4 Units)

820 N. Austin Condominium Association (820 N. Austin - 10 Units)

112-116 North Austin Condominium Association (116-112 N Austin — 12 Units)
211 N. Grove Condominium Association (211 N. Grove — 10 Units

Avenue Square Condominium Association (227 N. Oak Park Avenue — 20+ Units)
Astor House Il Condo Association (1111 N. Harlem — 6 Units

Year-to-date, Ms. Swaggerty conducted five (5) training seminars and has also added four
new seminars to the program’s current curriculum.

Lastly, Ms. Swaggerty continues to maintain her lllinois CAM (Certified Association
Manager) License.

21 South Blvd. e Oak Park e lllinois @ 60302 e (708) 386-6061
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Board of Directors

Oak Park Residence Corporation
and Affiliated Corporation

QOak Park, Illinois

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Oak Park Residence
Corporation and Affiliated Corporation (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related
consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Oak Park Residence Corporation and Affiliated
Corporation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of Oak Park Residence Corporation and Affiliated Corporation and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

HOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC 1
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1400 Opus Place Suite 100
Downers Grove, 1L 60315
(630) 390-1140 « Fax (630) 380-1250
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Oak Park Residence
Corporation and Affiliated Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date
that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Oak Park Residence Corporation and Affiliated Corporation's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Oak Park Residence Corporation and Affiliated Corporation's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that

we identified during the audit.
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Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying supplemental information shown on pages 28 to 51 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial staternents
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

L AQWTLL%

KOLNICKI, PETERSON, WIRTH LLC
Certified Public Accountanis

Downers Grove, Illinois
April 28, 2025



STATEMENT 1

KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC
(Page 1 of 2)

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2623

ASSETS

2024 2023
Cash -
Unrestricted $ 1,643,967 A 466,181
Restricted 1,066,719 1,057,286
Escrow 246,302 205,706
Total cash 2,959,988 1,729,173
Investments 625,527 817,360
Net property and equipment 51,644,753 42,711,369
Right of use asset 100,648 148,036
Due from Housing Authority of the
Village of Oak Park 2,169 36
Miscellaneous and tenant receivables, net 147,881 108,045
Supplies inventory 27,359 62,130
Prepaid expenses 197,850 217,222
Net intangible assets 39,316 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 55,745,491 h 45,793,371

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the accompanying summary of

significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements

4



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

STATEMENT 1

(Page 2 of 2)

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2024 2023
LIABILITIES
Note payable - copier lease $ - 15,225
Accounts payable - trade 210,277 239,279
Security deposits and other liabilities 857,707 816,930
Accrued expenses - salaries and employee
benefits 190,391 194,479
Accrued real estate taxes 1,179,060 1,362,967
Accrued interest 414,378 81,185
Deferred revenue 97.405 735,410
Deferred grant revenue 2,025,000 -
Lease liability 104,976 152,437
Mortgage payable (current portion
($393,547 and $385,448 respectively) 16,195,030 16,576,138
Construction loan 11,136,741 2,532,837
Line of credit 1,500,000 1,000,000
Housing bond and rehabilitation loans 17,355,030 17,664,881
Promissory notes 1,565,700 1,565,700
Acquisition loans (current portion
$0 and $0, respectively) 2,576,827 2,576,827
Capital advance - Ryan Farrelly Project 1,618,400 1,618,400
Total liabilities 57,026,922 47,132,695
NET ASSETS (BEFICIT)
Without donor restrictions 1,052,855 1,075,380
With donor restrictions (2,334,286) (2,414,704)
Total net assets (deficit) (1,281,431) {1,339,324)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 55,745,491 $ 45,793,371

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the accompanying summary of
significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements

5



KOLKICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

STATEMENT 2
(Page 1 of 2)

CAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
NET ASSETS WITHOUT RESTRICTIONS
REVENUES
Rent - collections from tenants k) 9,548,149 $ 9,061,687
Management and maintenance fees 224,572 249,193
Grant income 99,533 66,648
Village of Oak Park - small condo 42,500 42,500
Program reimbursements 23,220 22,548
Other administrative fees 10,901 17,268
Total revenues without restrictions 9,948,875 9,459,844
Net assets released from restrictions (80,418) 27,334
Total revenues without restrictions
and reclassification 9,868,457 9,487,178
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 1,526,283 1,496,863
Depreciation and amortization 2,350,604 2,403,701
Operating, maintenance, building
supplies and management expense 2,016,607 1,874,938
Administrative 789,493 783,625
Real estate taxes 996,507 1,363,050
Insurance 447 872 364,917
Employee benefits 306,991 305,508
Tenant services 78,794 69,652
Office rent 52,447 52,448
Utilities 825,454 857,344
Total expenses 9.390.452 9,572,046
Unrestricted income (loss) from operations 478,005 (84,868)




KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

STATEMENT 2

(Page 2 of 2)

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense
Interest and investment income (loss)
Amortization of loan fees and bond issuance
cost related to refinancing
Bad debt expense

TOTAL OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
WITHOUT RESTRICTIONS

NET ASSETS WITH RESTRICTIONS
HUD subsidy to the Oaks and Farreily projects

Net assets released from restrictions:
Funds expended in operations in accordance

with restriction agreements

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
WITH RESTRICTIONS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), beginning of period

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), end of period

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the

2024 2023

(1,151,371 (1,146,093)

17,542 86,818
(56,621) (48,068)
(203,951) (206,222)
(1,394,401) (1,313,565)
(916,396) (1,398,433)

893,871 830,364
80,418 (27,334)

974,289 803,030
57,893 (595,403)
(1,339,324) (743,921)
(1,281,431) (1,339,324)

accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements

7



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

3

‘SHIALIAIRIS TRIMRUL S} 0 S3I04L pine sarorfod
Bupgunoooe juesyudis jo Arewwns Fuiluedwiosse sy yim
OI03UH0S U AJUO pudk 39 PINOYS SIUSLISIRIS [RIOUBLL S5 ],

6TP'TLE0T $  ££9°€LE  §  TE9'69 $  PPEBTSOI S seETOSOl § 18lT91€ $  P6L8L ¢ oTrLorol %
TTT0T - - TTT90T 166°€0T - - 166°€0T
8908t - - 8908t 129°9% - - 129'96
£60°9%1°1 - - £60°9P1°1 1LE18TT - - 1LE°181°1
9b0°TLS 6 £E9°CLE 759°69 19LRC1%6 TSH06E°6 181°91¢ POL'SL LLP'S66'S
8PP°TS £L6°1 - $L8°0S LYY TS - - LYFTS
LOL'E0¥ T - - 0L €0V T 90T'€SET - - 90T'ESET
880°01 - 880°01 - LT6'SE - LT6'ST -
LI6F9E 0s¥'8 - L9¥95E LR LY TIL'8 - [91°6EY
0S0°€9¢°L - - 050°C9€°L LOS'966 - - LOS 966
8E6FLET 910°¢1 - 7T6'658°1 LOO9I0T 00F'It - L09'F00°T
PPELES 879 - 9117958 ¥syicrs 44 - £86'7T8
STYE8L POLT'6ST - 12529 £6¥°68L 6787501 - ¥H9°€89
§E6°198°1 § 9888t § #9568 $ 605191 $ 65681 $ 0SL681 g L98°T9 § Tl $
feie, {edauasy pue I0JRULPIOO]) suofesad) Halug [elauan) pue I0j2UIPI00)) SUCNZIAE)
fliifarizie | F01A18G [ejuayg JUALISBEURIA] 0140 [eIusy
SD0EAIDG UMRIZ01] §301A13G wzidolg
- £20T ¥70T

€ INAWHLVLS

£707 ANV $Z0Z ‘I HATWADIQ AFANE SYVIA FHL HO4
SASNIIXH TVNOILINIL 40 SINFWALV.LS GLLVUITIOSNOD
NOILVYOMDMOD GELVITIIIY ANV NOILYVHOJHOD IDNTAISTE MU Vd AVO

[e10],

1q2p ped

1509 souenssi puog

PUE $30] UBO[ JO UONEZIIOWY
asuadxd 1SaI9]

ASNRIXH HTHLO

sasuadxa Junzsado B10]

sasuadxe Ly
uoyezZIoWe pue uonemaldag
2O
aoueInsuy
saxe],
20UBUSHUTBUI pUE Sieday
ELEHI]
SATIBISIUMUPY
S1IJUa( pug {0148,
SIWELE ANIT HASSVA



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LiC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Rent - coliections from tenants

HUD subsidy to Qaks and Famelly projects
Program reimbursements

Grants

Viliage of OQak Park - small condo
Management and maintenance fees
Investment income

Other administrative fees

Total Receipts

Salaries and wages

Operating, maintenance, building
supplies and management expense

Administrative

Real estate taxes

Insurance

Interest

Employee benefits

Tenant services

Office rent

Utilities

Security deposits

Total BYisbursements

Net Cash provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net deposits to the escrow accounts
Net deposits to the restricted accounts
Payments for intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments

Canstruction in progress

Net purchases of fixed assets

Net Cash used by Investing Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Principal payments - first mortgage (or bonds)

Principal - Oaks

Principal Payments - Promissory Note
Proceeds from line of credit

Due from related party

Payments on capital lease

Net Cash provided {(used) by Financing Activities

Net increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash acd Cash Equivalents

Beginning of Period Cash

End of Peried Cash

These financial statements should be read only in connestion with the accompanying surmary of

2024 2023
$ 8,841,525 9,048,465
893,871 830,364
23,220 22,548
2,124,533 -
42,500 42,500
224,572 249,193
4,375 86,818
10,901 17,268
12,165,597 10,297,156
(1,542,102) (1,474,175)
(1,978,884) (1,851,848)
(810,775) (762,113)
(1,180,414) (1,338,323)
(428,375) (375,199
(818,178) (1,123,853)
(318,738) (293,516)
(18,794) (69,652)
(52,447) (50,990)
(812,173) (847,801)
40,777 12,141
(7,980,103} (8,219,329}
4,185,394 2,077,827
(43,596) 7,089
{9,433) {199,305}
- (32,000)
205,000 3,396,830
- (879,526)
(1,773,632) {3,505,309)
(1,071,122) {1,431.402)
(2,692,783) (2,643,623)
- (745,592)
(78,752) -
(679,399) -
460,684 1,000,000
(2,133) 1,431
(15,225) (15,942)
(314,825 239,897
1,177,786 (325,899)
466,181 792,080
$ 1,643,967 466,181

significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements

9
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

As stated in its Articles of Incorporation and related organizational documents, Oak Park Residence
Corporation (the "Organization") is a not-for-profit corporation organized exclusively for charitable and
educational purposes including but not limited to promoting the progress and general welfare of the residents of
the Village of Oak Park by:

¢ Improving or causing to be improved, substandard Oak Park housing stock and developing projects and
activities for the prevention and elimination of blight and blighting influence, all in cooperation or
coordination with governmental and civic bodies, and all for the primary purpose of combatting
community deterioration and securing adequate housing, community services and conditions,
economically and otherwise to the progress and general welfare of the community.

s Assisting in the development of projects and activities in cooperation or coordination with governmental
and civic bodies for the prevention and elimination of racial and ethnic prejudice and discrimination, as
well as the lessening of neighborhood tension by assisting local government in implementing its Fair
Housing Ordinance and by assisting all persons in effecting stable, integrated residential facilities in all
parts of the Village of Oak Park.

s Instructing and counselling individuals and groups, public and private, on housing management
standards, housing rehabilitation techniques and improvement of residential properties, and

¢ Providing elderly persons and handicapped persons with housing facilities and services specially
designed to meet their physical, social and psychological needs, and to promote their health, security,
happiness and usefulness in longer living.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial position and results of operations of the Organization
and its 29 buildings. The consolidated financial statements also include four affiliated entities, Elizabeth H. and
Cyrus V. Giddings Corporation (“Giddings™); The Oaks Section 202 LLC (“The Oaks LLC”); R C Management
Services Corporation (“RCMSC™); and OPRC A & I LLC (“A & L LLC”). Giddings shares common directors
with the Oak Park Residence Corporation and owns the Ryan Farrelly Apartments, a 21-unit building for the
handicapped, which is subsidized by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The Oaks LLC is
a limited liability corporation whose sole member is the Organization that owns a 76-unit apartment building (“The
Oaks™) operated for the elderly and handicapped, and is subsidized by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. RCMSC was incorporated on December 9, 2009 as a for-profit Hllinois corporation wholly-owned
by the Organization and will act as an agent for the Organization and will enter into property management
contracts. A & L LLC is a limited liability corporation whose sole member is the Organization that owns a seven-
unit building at 1018 North Austin and a four-unit building at 908 South Lombard. These buildings were purchased
on August 10, 2015. In 2020, the Organization completed the Schuman acquisition. The acquisition added six
multifamily rental properties in Oak Park, Illinois.

The Organization's activities include management and maintenance of apartment buildings in the Viliage of Oak
Park owned by the Organization, the Housing Authority of the Village of Oak Park, and third parties.

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Significant
accounting policies followed by the Organization are presented below.

10



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

INCOME TAXES

The Internal Revenue Service has ruled that the Organization is exempt from the payment of federal income tax
under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as a charitable organization.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASC 740-10-05 “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes” that clarified the accounting and recognition for income tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the
Organization’s income tax returns. The Organization adopted the standard in 2010.

The Organization’s income tax filings are subject to audit by various taxing authorities. The Organization’s open
audit periods are 2021 through 2023. In evaluating the Organization’s tax provisions and accruals, future taxable
income and the reversal of temporary differences, interpretations of tax planning strategies are considered. The
Organization believes their estimates are based on current facts and circumstances.

On July 25, 2022, the Organization received a Sales Tax Exemption Certificate from the State of Illinois for
applicable purchases.

ACCOUNTING METHOD
The Organization maintains their accounting records using the accrual method of accounting.
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are carried at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful
lives:

Furniture, equipment and organization assets 5to 10 years

Building and improvements 510 40 years

All costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of the property, including interest and real estate taxes during
the period of rehabilitation, are capitalized.

UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS

The Organization established an allowance for uncollectable tenant accounts receivable based on their estimate of
uncollectable receivables that is determined based on historical performance. Amounts determined to be
uncollectable are expensed in the period such determination is made. Bad debt expense for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $203,951 and $206,222, respectively. The allowance for uncollectable accounts
was $178,214 and $140,818 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

INVESTMENTS

I[nvestments are carried at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the statement of
activities. Investment income is reflected in the statement of activities as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or

permanently restricted based on the existence and nature of any donor restrictions.
11



KOLNICK! PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

INVESTMENTS IN FORECLOSED HOMES

All costs incurred in the purchase and maintenance of foreclosed real estate before subsequent sale are capitalized.
VACATION PAY

Accumulated unpaid vacation costs are reported in the period earned.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Organization considers all liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents. Restricted cash and escrow accounts are not considered cash equivalents.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of loan origination fees and bond issuance costs. Intangible assets are recorded at cost and
are amortized using the straight-line method. Intangible assets are reported net with the corresponding debt.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Oak Park Residence Corporation
and an affiliated Corporation. Al significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

UNCLASSIFIED BALANCE SHEET
Consistent with common practice among companies operating in the real estate management and development
industry, the Organization presents its statement of financial position in an unclassified format, i.e., without

segregating its assets and liabilities into current and noncurrent categories. An unclassified statement of financial
position is considered to be a preferable presentation due to the nature of the Organization's activities.

CONTRIBUTED SERVICES

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the value of contributed services meeting the requirements
for recognition in the financial statements was not material and has not been recorded.

SUPPLIES INVENTORY

Supplies inventory, which consists of operating and construction supplies, is valued at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, ELC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Organization uses an interest rate swap to effectively convert the variable rate on its mortgage loan to a fixed
rate for the six buildings purchased under the Schuman acquisition, as described in Note 8. The change in the fair
value of the swap agreement and the payments to or receipts from the counterparty to the swap are netted with the
interest expense on the mortgage and allocated among the functional expense categories. Cash flows from the
interest rate swap contract is classified as a financing activity on the statement of cash flows.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2023 financial statements to conform with the presentation of the
2024 financial statements. The reclassifications have no effect on the net income for the year ended December 31,
2023.

MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

DATE OF MANAGEMENT REVIEW

Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of this report and the date the financial statements were
available to be issued was April 28, 2025.

LEASES

In February 2016, the Financial Standards Accounting Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2016-02, Leases. Among other provisions, ASU 2016-02 requires the lease to record a right of use (ROU) asset
and lease Hlability on the balance sheet for an operating lease greater than 12 months. The lease liability will be
equal to the present value of the lease payments. An ROU asset will be based on the lease liability adjusted for
qualifying initial direct costs. The expense of operating leases under the new guidance will be recognized in the
income statement on a straight-line basis by adjusting the amortization of the ROU asset to produce straight-line
expense when combined with the interest expense of the lease liability. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021, with early application permitted.

The accounting and disclosures in these financial statements and notes follow the applicable portions of ASU 2016-
02.

This information is an integral part of the
accompanying combined financial statements
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 - RESTRICTED AND ESCROWED CASH

The regulatory agreement with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the
Organization requires that The Qaks LLC and the Giddings Corporation maintain certain cash reserves. The
consent of HUD is required before funds may be withdrawn from certain accounts. At December 31, 2024 and
2023, the following amounts were deposits in interest-bearing bank accounts or short-term certificates of deposit:

2024 2023

Reserve for replacement $ 482,326 $ 437,163
Reserve for residual receipts 508,216 507,545
Security deposits 35368 35,531
Total restricted cash - governmental 1,025,910 980.239
Other restricted cash — capital projects fund - 538 525
Other restricted cash — security deposits 39,348 75,419
Other restricted cash - reserve for repairs
and maintenance 923 1.103
Total restricted cash - non-governmental 40,809 77,047

Total restricted cash $ 1,066,719 $1.057.286

In addition, at December 31, 2024 and 2023, restricted cash also consisted of escrowed amounts for real estate
taxes and insurance as follows:

2024 2023
Taxes and insurance escrow § 249302 $ 205,706
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE

The Organization engages in a program to purchase HUD foreclosed houses to rehabilitate them for subsequent
resale to the public. All costs, including interest incurred while the houses are owned by the Organization, are
capitalized. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 the Organization had not incurred any costs in purchasing foreclosed
properties.

NOTE 3-FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on a determined measurement date. The
Organization reports its fair value measures using a three-level hierarchy that priorities the inputs used to measure
fair value.

This hierarchy, established by GAAP, requires that entities maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as

follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to
access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or inputs
that can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs should be used to measure the
fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the most
reliable evidence of fair value. However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities that
the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example, unconditional promises of in-kind contributions).
The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization’s financial statements are initial measurement of
noncash gifts and recurring measurement of investments.
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HOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Fair Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 1
Investments:
Mutual Funds and Bonds $ 625527 $ 817.360
Total Investments $ 625527 $ 817.360

The following schedules summarize the investment return and its classification in the statement of activities for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Dividends/interest $ 41,847 $ 140,355
Investment gain (loss) (22,417) (46,882)
Fees (1,888) (6,655)
Total investment gain (loss) $. 17,542 $ 86818

As discussed in Note 3 to these financial statements, the Organization is required to report its fair value
measurements in one of three levels, which are based on the ability to observe in the market place the inputs to the
Organization’s valuation techniques.

Level 1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investments measured at quoted prices in active markets for
identical investments as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Level 2 is for investments measured using inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices for the
identical asset in inactive markets, and for investments measured at net asset value that can be redeemed in the near
{erm,

Level 3 is for investments measured using inputs that are unobservable, and is used in situations for which there is
little, if any, market activity for the investment.

The Organization determines fair value of mutual funds, by the published net asset value per unit at the end of the
last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, L1C

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization rents offices from the Housing Authority of the Village of Oak Park, a municipal corporation,
and contracts with the Housing Authority for certain services.

The consolidated Statement of Financial Position reflects the following currently payable related party accounts
receivable and accounts payable regarding the previously mentioned corporations at December 31, 2024 and 2023
as follows:

2024 2023

Due from affiliates:
Housing Authority of the Village of Oak Park $ 2.169 $ 36

The consolidated statement of activities and changes in net assets reflect the following related party management,
maintenance and other administrative fees incurred at December 31, 2024 and 2023 as follows:

2024 2023
Office rent, management, maintenance
and other administrative reimbursables:
Housing Authority of the Village of Oak Park $ 55,473 $ 48,684

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Land $ 3,708,846 $ 3,704,846
Buildings 35,325,055 35,418,731
Building improvements 29,310,030 28,477,985
Furniture and equipment 1,620,864 1,509,826
Construction in progress 18,609,026 8,231,490
Office equipment 675,806 675.806
Total, at cost 89,249,627 78,018,684
Less accumulated depreciation (37.604,874) (35,.307,315)
Total $51.644.753 $42,711.369

Depreciation expense on property and equipment was $2,350,604 and $2,403,701 at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.
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HOLNICKI PETERSON & WIKTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 7-DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following: 2024 2023
Acquisition Loans Payable — Village of Oak Park:

Acquisition loan for the property at Lombard and Madison,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1051) $ 90,000 $ 90,000

Acquisition loan for the property at 1100 North Austin,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1211) 60,000 60,000

Acquisition loan for the property at Harrison and Lyman,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
{Asset 1214) 63,000 63,000

Acquisition loan for the property at Kenilworth and Pleasant,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
{Asset 1215) 474,827 474,827

Acquisition loan for the property at 411 South Harvey,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1216) 198,500 198,500

Acquisition loan for the property at 1022-24 North Austin,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1219) 108,000 108,000

Acquisition loan for the property at 1000 North Austin Avenue,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1220) 171,500 171,500

Acquisition loan for the property at 1118-1126 South Austin,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1222) 468,000 468,000

Acquisition loan for the property at 14 North Austin, secured
by that property due December 31, 2026. (Asset 1334) 193,000 193,000
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
NOTE 7- DEBT (continued)
2024 2023
Acquisition loan for the property at 301-307 Harrison, secured
by that property, due April 3, 2031. (Asset 1317) $_ 750,000 $ 750.000
Total acquisition loans payable $2.576.827 $2576.827

All of the above acquisition loans are 0% interest loans. Each loan is payable in full at the date listed or, if the
subject property is sold, at the closing date of the sale. During 2022, the acquisition loan for the property at 7 W.
Van Buren was forgiven.

IFA Bonds Payable:
Series 2017 Bonds

On January 1, 2017, the Illinois Finance Authority retired the 2001 and 2006 bonds and issued the Organization
variable rate demand revenue bonds — Series 2017.

The bonds were used to retire the Series 2001 bonds of $13,000,000 and Series 2006 bonds of $4,000,000, provide
a project fund for rehabilitation costs of $2,174,271, and fund costs of issuance. Bond proceeds were $20,000,000.
The bonds’ maturity date is January 1, 2047, and has an initial rate of interest of 2.29% per annum. The interest
rate is effective from the date of closing through January 1, 2027. The balance due at December 31, 2024 and 2023
was $17,480,000 and $17,840,000, respectively. The balance at December 31, 2024 and 2023, net of unamortized
debt issuance costs of $124,970 and $175,119 respectively, was $17,355,030 and $17,664,881, respectively.
Quarterly payments are $90,000 plus interest.

The bonds are secured by the underlying properties and the assignment of rents. The bonds contain various
covenants which the Organization must meet on a quarterly basis. The Organization was in compliance with the
bonds’ covenants at December 31, 2024 and 2023. In 2024, 9 of the 20 buildings were released from the bond

issue.

‘Promissory Notes
2024 2023

Unsecured notes payable to the seller of the Schuman properties.
Interest is payable monthly at 5%. The rate is fixed for the first
five years of the loan term, then calculated as the lesser of 7% or
the ten-year treasury rate plus 2.75%, but in no event less than 5%.
The promissory notes are subordinated to the acquisition note

payable of $12,825,600. Notes are due February 2030. $ 1,565,700 1,565,700
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 7-DEBT (continued)

2024 2023
Mortgage Notes Payable — HUD:

HUD capital advance - Ryan Farrelly Project
(Asset 1002) $ 1.618.400 $ 1,618.400

Mortgage Notes Payable:

Note payable — bank, with monthly payments of $6,230,

including interest at 4.585%, final payment of $806,125

due August 2025, collateralized by the A & L LLC

buildings and an assignment of rents. $ 830,644 $ 865,889

Note payable — mortgage banking company, with monthly

payments of $18,814, including interest at 4.00%, final

payment due October 2050, collateralized by The Oaks

property and an assignment of rents  (Asset 1001). 3,632,336 3,711,088

Construction loan payable to the bank, with monthly payments
of interest due at the Federal Funds Effective Rate (5.33% and
4.33% at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively) plus 225
basis points. The loan is due October 25, 2025, with a
borrower’s option for two additional years, to October 23,
2027. The loan is secured by real estate under construction.
The Company may borrow up to $12,015,000, and is

required to contribute cash equity of $4,271,597 before
drawing on the loan. 8,506,490 2,532,837

Note payable — bank, with monthly payments of interest for

the first 18 months, then principal and interest payments

for eight years and six months, based on a 30-year amortization,
for the purchase of the Schuman properties. Interest is fixed at
at 2.99% per year. The Organization was required to enter into

an interest rate swap to fix the interest rate. 11,930,634 12,214,788
Total mortgage notes payable 24,900,104 19,324,602
Less unamortized debt issuance costs (198.584) (215,627)
Total mertgage notes payable $24,701,520 $19,108,975
Total long term debt 547,817,477 $42,534,783
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HOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 7 - DEBT (continued)

The Corporation refinanced its previous morigage for The Oaks, and in order to obtain a new HUD-Insured
Mortgage, the Corporation has agreed to renew its Housing Assistance Agreements (HAP) contract for a period
of 20 years. Essentially, it provides that the Oaks must be operated as originally agreed to (which includes the
special observation of various Federal laws), and nothing may be changed without approval from HUD. The
HAP contract expires in September 2035.

The HUD capital advance provided assistance in financing the construction of the Ryan Farrelly Apartments. The
capital advance shall bear no interest and is not required to be repaid so long as housing remains available to

eligible, very low income households for a period of 40 years in accordance with Section 811.

At December 31, 2024, the future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Mortgage
Acquisition Notes Promissory IDFA Bond Capital
Loans Pavable Notes Payable Advance Total
2025 h --- § 96,704,453 $ --- % 360,000 b --- $ 10,004,453
2026 --- 380,064 .- 360,000 --- 740,064
2027 1,826,827 393,263 --- 360,000 --- 2,580,090
2028 .- 406,925 --- 360,000 - 766,925
20298 --- 421,064 — 360,000 --- 781,064
2030 2034 750,000 10,949,423 1,565,700 1,800,000 1,618,400 16,683,523
2035 - 2039 “a- 662,796 --- 1,800,000 - 2,462,796
2040 - 2044 --- 809,274 --- 1,800,000 --- 2,609,274
2045 2049 --- 988,120 --- 10,280,000 - 11,268,120
2050 - 2052 --- 184,722 --- --- --- 184.722
Fotals $2.576,827 $ 24.900.104 $ 1.565.700 $17.480.,000 $ 1618400 $ 48141.031

The note payable of $11,930,634 and $12,214,788 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, for the
Schuman acquisition bears interest at 2.04% plus a leverage factor based on the one month LIBOR, which was
5.39644% and 0.1037% at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. However, the Organization entered into an
interest rate swap contract that effectively converts the interest rate on the note to a fixed rate of 2.99%. Under the
swap contract, the Organization pays interest at 2.99% and receives interest at 2.04% plus the leverage factor. The
swap is designed to hedge the risk of changes in interest payments on the note caused by changes in LIBOR.
Income under this agreement was $535,284 for the year ended December 31, 2024 and $513,474 for the year ended
December 31, 2023. The liability under this agreement was $0 and $0 at December 31, 2024 and 2023,

respectively.
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, 11C

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2024 AND 2023

NOTE § - LINE OF CREDIT

The Company obtained a secured revolving line of credit on April 6, 2021 with a financial institution in Illinois up
o a maximum amount of $1,000,000; with interest payable monthly at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (7.50%
and 8.50% at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively) plus 0.25%. This line of credit is secured by substantially
all of the Company’s assets. The line of credit matured on April 6, 2024 and was extended to April 6, 2026. The
outstanding balance at December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $0 and $1,000,000, respectively.

The Company obtained a second line of credit on September 25, 2024 with a financial institution in Iilinois up to a
maximum amount of $4,000,000; with interest payable monthly at the Federal Funds Effective Rate (4.48% at
December 31, 2024) plus 225 basis points per annum. The line of credit is secured by eight buildings owned by the
Company. The maturity date of the line is September 25, 2026. At December 31, 2024 the outstanding balance
was $1,500,000.

NOTE 9 - MULTI-EMPLOYER PENSION PLANS THAT PROVIDE PENSION BENEFITS

The Organization contributes to a multi-employer defined pension plan under the terms of an informal collective
bargaining agreement that covers its unjon represented employees. The risks of participating in the multi-employer
plan is different from single-employer plans in the following aspecis:

a. Assets contributed to the multi-employer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to
employees of other participating employers.

b.

b If a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may

be bome by the remaining participating employers.

If the Organization chooses to stop participating in some of its multi-employer plans, the Organization maybe
required to pay these plans an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal

liability.

The Organization’s participation in this plan for the annual periods ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is listed
below. Unless otherwise noted, the most recent Pension Plan Protection Act (PPA) zone status available in 2024
and 2023 is for the plan’s year end at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The zone status of the plan is based on
information that the Organization received from the plan and is certified by the plan’s actuary. Among other
factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65 percent funded; plans in the yellow zone are less than 80
percent funded; and the plans in the green zone are at least 80 percent funded. If a plan is not operating within
green zone status, it will either have a financial improvement plan (FIP) or rehabilitation plan (RP).

The Organization contributed $14,075 and $15,939 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
to the Local No. 1 Pension Fund EIN 51-6055057, as required by an informal collective bargaining agreement. At
July 1, 2023 and 2022, the Local No. 1 Pension Fund held a funded status of 107.1% and 105.6%, respectively.
The plan is currently operating with green zone status. The Organization was not required to pay a surcharge for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, lLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLANS

The Organization maintains a defined contribution retirement plan qualified under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code for all employees who have been employed for at least one year and worked over 1,000 hours.
Eligible employees may contribute a portion of their compensation to the plan, subject to Internal Revenue Service
limits. The Organization’s contributions to the plan are discretionary. The Organization paid an employer
contribution of 4% of eligible employee compensation for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.
Retirement costs for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were $54,645 and $40,790, respectively.

NOTE 11 - RENTAL STATISTICS

The Organization had the following rental statistics at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Units % Units %%
Total number of units available 703 97.77 703 98.87%
Total of units under rehab 16 2.23 8 1.13
Total of units vacant (28) (3.89) (20} (2.81)
Total of rented units 691 96.11% 691 87.19%
Total of units managed,
but not owned 43 43

NOTE 12 - NET ASSETS

The net assets of the Organization are divided between net assets with restrictions and net assets without
restrictions.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the net assets (deficit) with restrictions consisted of the following:

2024 2023
The Oaks L1.C $(1,252,401) $(1,386,381)
Farrelly project - Giddings (1,081.885) (1.028.323)
Total $(2,334,286) $(2.414,704)

The restrictions on The Oaks LLC and Farrelly projects relate to the entire amount of net assets at December 31,
2024 and 2023. All of the revenues for the projects are considered restricted. The restrictions are considered to
expire when payments are made.
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 13 - OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENT

The Organization leases its administrative office space from a related party, The Housing Authority of the Village
of Oak Park, under an operating lease dated September 14, 1994, The lease was renewed on January 1, 2010 for an
additional five years with a monthly base rent of $9,860 that is increased 3% each year. On July 21, 2010, the lease
was amended further to reduce the monthly base rent to $9,005, increasing annually beginning in 2012 by 3% each
year. On December 10, 2014, the lease was extended until December 31, 2015, with a base rent of $121,620. On
December 9, 2015, the lease was extended for an additional five years through December 31, 2020. On December
9, 2020, the lease was extended for one year through December 31, 2021.

In 2022, the lease was extended for five years through December 31, 2026. Future minimum payments under the
lease are as follows:

2025 $ 54,09
2026 55,720
Total payments due 109,816
Less discount to present value (4,840)
Total operating liability $ 104976

Rent expense under the aforementioned lease for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, was $52,448 and
$52,448, respectively. The Organization is also responsible for all utilities relating to the leased premises.

NOTE 14 - CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE
During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Organization entered into a new lease agreement which included the
buyout of a previous capital lease and has been accounted for as a capital lease. At December 31, 2024, the lease

term was less than one year, and management did not apply the provisions of ASU 2016-2 for this lease.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, leased equipment consisted of the following:

2024 2023
Cost $§ 62,261 $ 62,261
Less accumulated depreciation (50,846) (38.354)
Net book value $§ 11415 $ 23.867
Depreciation expense $ 12452 $ 12,452
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 15-LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization’s financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by amounts not

available for general use because of contractual, board, or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the balance
sheet date.

Financial assets at year end:

2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,643,967 $ 466,181
Investments 625,527 817,360
Restricted net assets (2.334,286) (2.414,704)
Total financial assets available to
meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $  (64,792) $(1,131,163)

NOTE 16 - TENANT RECEIVABLES

Tenant receivables for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 consist of:

2024 2023
Balance at January 1, $ 108,045 $ 207,215
Billings 9,647,682 0,128,335
Bad debt (203,951) (206,222)
Collections (9,403.895) (9,021,283)
Balance at December 31, $ 147,881 $ 108,045

NOTE 17 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits.
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant

credit risk on cash. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Organization’s uninsured bank balances totaled
$1,406,324 and $396,145, respectively.
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OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 18 - CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The Organization had interest payments of $1,053,446 and $1,123,853 in the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. The Organization paid $0 for taxes in the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

The Organization had financed $4,939,458 and $2,532,837 of construction in progress in the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 19 — CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

The Organization is redeveloping their property at 7 W. Van Buren. The Village of Oak Park provided
approval to the planned redevelopment and demolition in 2022. Financing and retention of contractors was
finalized in 2022. Construction commenced in late 2022 and was underway throughout 2024. Demolition and
redevelopment costs are recorded with construction in progress for 7 W. Van Buren. Total costs recorded with
construction in progress are $18,609,026 and $8,231,490 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,

respectively.
NOTE 20 - DEFERRED REVENUE

OPRC received a $2,000,000 grant from the Net Zero Energy program of the lllinois Clean Energy Community
Foundation (ICECF) in support of its construction of a new building located at 7 Van Buren (The Pierce). This
grant was to be paid out in three installments, with 30% ($600,000) to be paid out at project initiation, 30%
($600,000) to be paid out at project completion and lease up, and the remining 40% ($800,000) to be paid out
after 12 consecutive months of building net zero energy performance. Since the awarding of the initial 30%
($600,000 in project initiation grant funding), ICECF has ceased operations and, in accordance with OPRC’s
request, provided the remaining funding ($1,400,000) to OPRC in August of 2024. The second 30% ($600,000
in project completion grant funding) will be realized as income to OPRC m 2025 (consistent with the
completion and lease up of the new building). The final 40% ($800,000) will be retained by OPRC and will be
realized as income for accounting purposes following the achievement of 12 consecutive months of net zero

energy performance for the building.
NOTE 21 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In 2025, the Company will receive a tax credit of $1,006,973 as a solar energy investment credit related to the
development of the 7 W. Van Buren building, “The Pierce”. The building will open for leasing in March 2025.

This information is an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements.
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2026 Small Condominium Management Program Budget

Revenue
1 Requested VOP Funding $47,500.00
Expenses
2 Staffing - Program Coordinator $30,500.00
3 Staffing - Administrative Support $5,700.00
4 Program Oversite - President $1,100.00
5 Accounting Support $1,000.00
6 Web-based/Online Participant Resources $4,100.00
7 Supplies and Training Materials $3,100.00
8 Printing and Copying $290.00
9 Membership Fees/Training $1,245.00
10 Facility Utilization $900.00
Total Expenses $47,935.00

Revenue Over Expenses ($435.00)




Oak Park
Residence
Corporation

SMALL CONDOMINIUM MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (SMCP)
PLANNED ACTIVITIES AND GOALS FOR 2026

e Provide structured guidance and training to four (4) small condominium
associations in effective self-management, best practices, and regulatory
compliance.

e Respond to all inquiries and requests from Oak Park Condominium owners and
board members for information, guidance, and assistance regarding association
management.

e Conduct in-person, online, and phone consultations with association board
members.

e Conduct 12 virtual training presentations to condominium owners and board
members. (Selected from the list below).

e Survey program participants to identify needed training and program
improvements.

e Refine and update the training curriculum as needed to address changes in state

and local statutes.
e Research new or changing issues related to association management and
develop relevant training materials/presentations.

e Enhance and host SCMP web-based online management resources for program

participants.
List of SCMP Virtual Presentations

(at least 12 of which to be conducted in 2026)
1. Condominiums as Not-for-Profits 13. Developing Rules and Regulations
2. Know Your Governing Documents 14. Developing Leadership
3. Board Roles & Responsibilities 15. Conflict Resolution
4. Effective Board Meetings 16. CCIC Ombudsperson Act
5. Board and Owners’ Meeting 17. Effective Grievance Policies
6. Minutes & Records Retention 18. Short Term Rentals & VOP Rental Licenses
7. Annual Budgets 19. Transparency & Clear Communication
8. Assessments & Collections 20. Board Elections and Leadership Transitions
9. Special Assessments 21. Village Inspections — Curing Violations
10. Reserve Studies & Accounts 22. Creating Owner Engagement
11. Risk Mitigation and Insurance 23. How to Avoid Costly Litigation
12. How to Bid Capital Projects 24. Developing Vendor Resources

21 South Blvd. e Oak Park e lllinois ® 60302 e (708) 386-6061
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SCMP ACTIVITIES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS THROUGH 6/30/2025

Year-to-date, Ms. Swaggerty has worked closely with the following four (4) associations to
resolve specific issues, advance association objectives and provide further training in best
practices and processes for self-management.

511 N. Humphrey Condominium Association (511 N. Humphrey — 6 Units)
Cambridge Condominiums of Oak Park (916 S. Austin — 6 Units)

North Parkview Condominium Association (1329 N Harlem — 10 Units)
Brickwood East Condominium Association (431 S. East Ave. — 4 Units)

511 N. Humphrey Condominium Association

Year-to-date Ms. Swaggerty has provided individual training in fiduciary responsibilities
and association governance to the association’s president and training in financial record
keeping to the association’s new treasurer. Most recently she has provided guidance in the
disclosure documents the association must provide to the buyer’s attorney when a unit is
sold. The Treasurer has attended three of the program’s five online seminars year-to-date.

Cambridge Condominiums of Oak Park

Year-to-date, Ms. Swaggerty has worked closely with the association’s Treasurer to
ensure their financial records are accurate and being reconciled on a monthly basis. This
allows the association to measure their financial performance against their current budget
quarterly and adjust expenses and/or initiate collections on a timely basis. As a result, the
association is current on all of their expenses and has been able to establish a reserve
account of $12,000. Currently, Ms. Swaggerty is guiding the board through the process for
the collection of over $3,000 from a delinquent owner. This association’s Treasurer has
attended all six formal online seminars conducted so far this year.

North Parkview Condominium Association

Year-to-date, Ms. Swaggerty has been providing guidance and encouragement to board
members in following an action plan — created in late 2024 — to address critical needs,
including the collection of long delinquent assessments, and conducting regular and
effective board meetings. They have established greater transparency in decisions and
actions taken by the board and there has been a substantial decrease in conflict between
the board and owners. The board President has attended four of the formal online
seminars conducted so far this year.

21 South Blvd. e Oak Park e lllinois @ 60302 e (708) 386-6061
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Brickwood East Condominium Association

Year-to-date, Ms Swaggerty has been working closely with the Associations
President/Treasurer on best practices in bidding out capital improvement projects and
engaging new owners to participate on the board. The President/Treasurer of this four-unit
building has been doing the lion’s share of the management of the association and due to
her age is looking to step-down. Ms. Swaggerty has been providing guidance to the two
existing board members on owner engagement and recognizing leadership in others.

In addition to working with the four (4) associations listed above, Ms. Swaggerty spoke,
corresponded, and/or met independently with unit owners and/or board members of the
following associations on various issues including but not limited to, budgeting, elections
and annual meetings, fiduciary responsibilities of the board, owners’ rights to review
association records, collections, budgeting, association insurance, violation of rules and
regulations, notice requirements, self-management vs. professional management, the
lllinois Condominium Ombudsperson Act, and the increase in renters and subsequent
conflict within their buildings

330-332 S. Wesley Condominium Association (320-332 S. Wesley — 8 Units)

2 LeMoyne Parkway Condominium Association (2 LeMoyne — 6 Units)

109 S. Grove Condominium Association (109 S. Grove — 4 Units)

Courtyard Condominiums (406 Wisconsin - 10 Units)

Park Avenue Manor Condominium Association (10 Units)

Euclid Point Condominium Association (12 units)

409-411 Washington Ave. (4 Units)

820 N. Austin Condominium Association (820 N. Austin - 10 Units)

112-116 North Austin Condominium Association (116-112 N Austin — 12 Units)
211 N. Grove Condominium Association (211 N. Grove — 10 Units

Avenue Square Condominium Association (227 N. Oak Park Avenue — 20+ Units)
Astor House Il Condo Association (1111 N. Harlem — 6 Units

Year-to-date, Ms. Swaggerty conducted five (5) training seminars and has also added four
new seminars to the program’s current curriculum.

Lastly, Ms. Swaggerty continues to maintain her lllinois CAM (Certified Association
Manager) License.

21 South Blvd. e Oak Park e lllinois @ 60302 e (708) 386-6061
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SMALL CONDOMINIUM MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (SMCP)
PLANNED ACTIVITIES AND GOALS FOR 2026

e Provide structured guidance and training to four (4) small condominium
associations in effective self-management, best practices, and regulatory
compliance.

e Respond to all inquiries and requests from Oak Park Condominium owners and
board members for information, guidance, and assistance regarding association
management.

e Conduct in-person, online, and phone consultations with association board
members.

e Conduct 12 virtual training presentations to condominium owners and board
members. (Selected from the list below).

e Survey program participants to identify needed training and program
improvements.

e Refine and update the training curriculum as needed to address changes in state

and local statutes.
e Research new or changing issues related to association management and
develop relevant training materials/presentations.

e Enhance and host SCMP web-based online management resources for program

participants.
List of SCMP Virtual Presentations

(at least 12 of which to be conducted in 2026)
1. Condominiums as Not-for-Profits 13. Developing Rules and Regulations
2. Know Your Governing Documents 14. Developing Leadership
3. Board Roles & Responsibilities 15. Conflict Resolution
4. Effective Board Meetings 16. CCIC Ombudsperson Act
5. Board and Owners’ Meeting 17. Effective Grievance Policies
6. Minutes & Records Retention 18. Short Term Rentals & VOP Rental Licenses
7. Annual Budgets 19. Transparency & Clear Communication
8. Assessments & Collections 20. Board Elections and Leadership Transitions
9. Special Assessments 21. Village Inspections — Curing Violations
10. Reserve Studies & Accounts 22. Creating Owner Engagement
11. Risk Mitigation and Insurance 23. How to Avoid Costly Litigation
12. How to Bid Capital Projects 24. Developing Vendor Resources

21 South Blvd. e Oak Park e lllinois ® 60302 e (708) 386-6061



2026 Small Condominium Management Program Budget

Revenue
1 Requested VOP Funding $47,500.00
Expenses
2 Staffing - Program Coordinator $30,500.00
3 Staffing - Administrative Support $5,700.00
4 Program Oversite - President $1,100.00
5 Accounting Support $1,000.00
6 Web-based/Online Participant Resources $4,100.00
7 Supplies and Training Materials $3,100.00
8 Printing and Copying $290.00
9 Membership Fees/Training $1,245.00
10 Facility Utilization $900.00
Total Expenses $47,935.00

Revenue Over Expenses ($435.00)
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Board of Directors

Oak Park Residence Corporation
and Affiliated Corporation

QOak Park, Illinois

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Oak Park Residence
Corporation and Affiliated Corporation (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related
consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Oak Park Residence Corporation and Affiliated
Corporation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of Oak Park Residence Corporation and Affiliated Corporation and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

HOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC 1
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1400 Opus Place Suite 100
Downers Grove, 1L 60315
(630) 390-1140 « Fax (630) 380-1250



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, L1C

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Oak Park Residence
Corporation and Affiliated Corporation's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date
that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Oak Park Residence Corporation and Affiliated Corporation's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Oak Park Residence Corporation and Affiliated Corporation's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that

we identified during the audit.



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying supplemental information shown on pages 28 to 51 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial staternents
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

L AQWTLL%

KOLNICKI, PETERSON, WIRTH LLC
Certified Public Accountanis

Downers Grove, Illinois
April 28, 2025



STATEMENT 1

KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC
(Page 1 of 2)

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2623

ASSETS

2024 2023
Cash -
Unrestricted $ 1,643,967 A 466,181
Restricted 1,066,719 1,057,286
Escrow 246,302 205,706
Total cash 2,959,988 1,729,173
Investments 625,527 817,360
Net property and equipment 51,644,753 42,711,369
Right of use asset 100,648 148,036
Due from Housing Authority of the
Village of Oak Park 2,169 36
Miscellaneous and tenant receivables, net 147,881 108,045
Supplies inventory 27,359 62,130
Prepaid expenses 197,850 217,222
Net intangible assets 39,316 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 55,745,491 h 45,793,371

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the accompanying summary of

significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

STATEMENT 1

(Page 2 of 2)

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2024 2023
LIABILITIES
Note payable - copier lease $ - 15,225
Accounts payable - trade 210,277 239,279
Security deposits and other liabilities 857,707 816,930
Accrued expenses - salaries and employee
benefits 190,391 194,479
Accrued real estate taxes 1,179,060 1,362,967
Accrued interest 414,378 81,185
Deferred revenue 97.405 735,410
Deferred grant revenue 2,025,000 -
Lease liability 104,976 152,437
Mortgage payable (current portion
($393,547 and $385,448 respectively) 16,195,030 16,576,138
Construction loan 11,136,741 2,532,837
Line of credit 1,500,000 1,000,000
Housing bond and rehabilitation loans 17,355,030 17,664,881
Promissory notes 1,565,700 1,565,700
Acquisition loans (current portion
$0 and $0, respectively) 2,576,827 2,576,827
Capital advance - Ryan Farrelly Project 1,618,400 1,618,400
Total liabilities 57,026,922 47,132,695
NET ASSETS (BEFICIT)
Without donor restrictions 1,052,855 1,075,380
With donor restrictions (2,334,286) (2,414,704)
Total net assets (deficit) (1,281,431) {1,339,324)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 55,745,491 $ 45,793,371

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the accompanying summary of
significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements
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KOLKICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

STATEMENT 2
(Page 1 of 2)

CAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
NET ASSETS WITHOUT RESTRICTIONS
REVENUES
Rent - collections from tenants k) 9,548,149 $ 9,061,687
Management and maintenance fees 224,572 249,193
Grant income 99,533 66,648
Village of Oak Park - small condo 42,500 42,500
Program reimbursements 23,220 22,548
Other administrative fees 10,901 17,268
Total revenues without restrictions 9,948,875 9,459,844
Net assets released from restrictions (80,418) 27,334
Total revenues without restrictions
and reclassification 9,868,457 9,487,178
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 1,526,283 1,496,863
Depreciation and amortization 2,350,604 2,403,701
Operating, maintenance, building
supplies and management expense 2,016,607 1,874,938
Administrative 789,493 783,625
Real estate taxes 996,507 1,363,050
Insurance 447 872 364,917
Employee benefits 306,991 305,508
Tenant services 78,794 69,652
Office rent 52,447 52,448
Utilities 825,454 857,344
Total expenses 9.390.452 9,572,046
Unrestricted income (loss) from operations 478,005 (84,868)




KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

STATEMENT 2

(Page 2 of 2)

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense
Interest and investment income (loss)
Amortization of loan fees and bond issuance
cost related to refinancing
Bad debt expense

TOTAL OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
WITHOUT RESTRICTIONS

NET ASSETS WITH RESTRICTIONS
HUD subsidy to the Oaks and Farreily projects

Net assets released from restrictions:
Funds expended in operations in accordance

with restriction agreements

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
WITH RESTRICTIONS

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), beginning of period

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), end of period

These financial statements should be read only in connection with the

2024 2023

(1,151,371 (1,146,093)

17,542 86,818
(56,621) (48,068)
(203,951) (206,222)
(1,394,401) (1,313,565)
(916,396) (1,398,433)

893,871 830,364
80,418 (27,334)

974,289 803,030
57,893 (595,403)
(1,339,324) (743,921)
(1,281,431) (1,339,324)

accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements

7



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LiC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Rent - coliections from tenants

HUD subsidy to Qaks and Famelly projects
Program reimbursements

Grants

Viliage of OQak Park - small condo
Management and maintenance fees
Investment income

Other administrative fees

Total Receipts

Salaries and wages

Operating, maintenance, building
supplies and management expense

Administrative

Real estate taxes

Insurance

Interest

Employee benefits

Tenant services

Office rent

Utilities

Security deposits

Total BYisbursements

Net Cash provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net deposits to the escrow accounts
Net deposits to the restricted accounts
Payments for intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments

Canstruction in progress

Net purchases of fixed assets

Net Cash used by Investing Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Principal payments - first mortgage (or bonds)

Principal - Oaks

Principal Payments - Promissory Note
Proceeds from line of credit

Due from related party

Payments on capital lease

Net Cash provided {(used) by Financing Activities

Net increase (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash acd Cash Equivalents

Beginning of Period Cash

End of Peried Cash

These financial statements should be read only in connestion with the accompanying surmary of

2024 2023
$ 8,841,525 9,048,465
893,871 830,364
23,220 22,548
2,124,533 -
42,500 42,500
224,572 249,193
4,375 86,818
10,901 17,268
12,165,597 10,297,156
(1,542,102) (1,474,175)
(1,978,884) (1,851,848)
(810,775) (762,113)
(1,180,414) (1,338,323)
(428,375) (375,199
(818,178) (1,123,853)
(318,738) (293,516)
(18,794) (69,652)
(52,447) (50,990)
(812,173) (847,801)
40,777 12,141
(7,980,103} (8,219,329}
4,185,394 2,077,827
(43,596) 7,089
{9,433) {199,305}
- (32,000)
205,000 3,396,830
- (879,526)
(1,773,632) {3,505,309)
(1,071,122) {1,431.402)
(2,692,783) (2,643,623)
- (745,592)
(78,752) -
(679,399) -
460,684 1,000,000
(2,133) 1,431
(15,225) (15,942)
(314,825 239,897
1,177,786 (325,899)
466,181 792,080
$ 1,643,967 466,181

significant accounting policies and notes to the financial statements

9
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

As stated in its Articles of Incorporation and related organizational documents, Oak Park Residence
Corporation (the "Organization") is a not-for-profit corporation organized exclusively for charitable and
educational purposes including but not limited to promoting the progress and general welfare of the residents of
the Village of Oak Park by:

¢ Improving or causing to be improved, substandard Oak Park housing stock and developing projects and
activities for the prevention and elimination of blight and blighting influence, all in cooperation or
coordination with governmental and civic bodies, and all for the primary purpose of combatting
community deterioration and securing adequate housing, community services and conditions,
economically and otherwise to the progress and general welfare of the community.

s Assisting in the development of projects and activities in cooperation or coordination with governmental
and civic bodies for the prevention and elimination of racial and ethnic prejudice and discrimination, as
well as the lessening of neighborhood tension by assisting local government in implementing its Fair
Housing Ordinance and by assisting all persons in effecting stable, integrated residential facilities in all
parts of the Village of Oak Park.

s Instructing and counselling individuals and groups, public and private, on housing management
standards, housing rehabilitation techniques and improvement of residential properties, and

¢ Providing elderly persons and handicapped persons with housing facilities and services specially
designed to meet their physical, social and psychological needs, and to promote their health, security,
happiness and usefulness in longer living.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial position and results of operations of the Organization
and its 29 buildings. The consolidated financial statements also include four affiliated entities, Elizabeth H. and
Cyrus V. Giddings Corporation (“Giddings™); The Oaks Section 202 LLC (“The Oaks LLC”); R C Management
Services Corporation (“RCMSC™); and OPRC A & I LLC (“A & L LLC”). Giddings shares common directors
with the Oak Park Residence Corporation and owns the Ryan Farrelly Apartments, a 21-unit building for the
handicapped, which is subsidized by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. The Oaks LLC is
a limited liability corporation whose sole member is the Organization that owns a 76-unit apartment building (“The
Oaks™) operated for the elderly and handicapped, and is subsidized by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. RCMSC was incorporated on December 9, 2009 as a for-profit Hllinois corporation wholly-owned
by the Organization and will act as an agent for the Organization and will enter into property management
contracts. A & L LLC is a limited liability corporation whose sole member is the Organization that owns a seven-
unit building at 1018 North Austin and a four-unit building at 908 South Lombard. These buildings were purchased
on August 10, 2015. In 2020, the Organization completed the Schuman acquisition. The acquisition added six
multifamily rental properties in Oak Park, Illinois.

The Organization's activities include management and maintenance of apartment buildings in the Viliage of Oak
Park owned by the Organization, the Housing Authority of the Village of Oak Park, and third parties.

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Significant
accounting policies followed by the Organization are presented below.

10



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

INCOME TAXES

The Internal Revenue Service has ruled that the Organization is exempt from the payment of federal income tax
under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as a charitable organization.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASC 740-10-05 “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes” that clarified the accounting and recognition for income tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the
Organization’s income tax returns. The Organization adopted the standard in 2010.

The Organization’s income tax filings are subject to audit by various taxing authorities. The Organization’s open
audit periods are 2021 through 2023. In evaluating the Organization’s tax provisions and accruals, future taxable
income and the reversal of temporary differences, interpretations of tax planning strategies are considered. The
Organization believes their estimates are based on current facts and circumstances.

On July 25, 2022, the Organization received a Sales Tax Exemption Certificate from the State of Illinois for
applicable purchases.

ACCOUNTING METHOD
The Organization maintains their accounting records using the accrual method of accounting.
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are carried at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful
lives:

Furniture, equipment and organization assets 5to 10 years

Building and improvements 510 40 years

All costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of the property, including interest and real estate taxes during
the period of rehabilitation, are capitalized.

UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS

The Organization established an allowance for uncollectable tenant accounts receivable based on their estimate of
uncollectable receivables that is determined based on historical performance. Amounts determined to be
uncollectable are expensed in the period such determination is made. Bad debt expense for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $203,951 and $206,222, respectively. The allowance for uncollectable accounts
was $178,214 and $140,818 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

INVESTMENTS

I[nvestments are carried at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are reflected in the statement of
activities. Investment income is reflected in the statement of activities as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or

permanently restricted based on the existence and nature of any donor restrictions.
11



KOLNICK! PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

INVESTMENTS IN FORECLOSED HOMES

All costs incurred in the purchase and maintenance of foreclosed real estate before subsequent sale are capitalized.
VACATION PAY

Accumulated unpaid vacation costs are reported in the period earned.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Organization considers all liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents. Restricted cash and escrow accounts are not considered cash equivalents.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of loan origination fees and bond issuance costs. Intangible assets are recorded at cost and
are amortized using the straight-line method. Intangible assets are reported net with the corresponding debt.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Oak Park Residence Corporation
and an affiliated Corporation. Al significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

UNCLASSIFIED BALANCE SHEET
Consistent with common practice among companies operating in the real estate management and development
industry, the Organization presents its statement of financial position in an unclassified format, i.e., without

segregating its assets and liabilities into current and noncurrent categories. An unclassified statement of financial
position is considered to be a preferable presentation due to the nature of the Organization's activities.

CONTRIBUTED SERVICES

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the value of contributed services meeting the requirements
for recognition in the financial statements was not material and has not been recorded.

SUPPLIES INVENTORY

Supplies inventory, which consists of operating and construction supplies, is valued at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) basis.

12



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, ELC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Organization uses an interest rate swap to effectively convert the variable rate on its mortgage loan to a fixed
rate for the six buildings purchased under the Schuman acquisition, as described in Note 8. The change in the fair
value of the swap agreement and the payments to or receipts from the counterparty to the swap are netted with the
interest expense on the mortgage and allocated among the functional expense categories. Cash flows from the
interest rate swap contract is classified as a financing activity on the statement of cash flows.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2023 financial statements to conform with the presentation of the
2024 financial statements. The reclassifications have no effect on the net income for the year ended December 31,
2023.

MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

DATE OF MANAGEMENT REVIEW

Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of this report and the date the financial statements were
available to be issued was April 28, 2025.

LEASES

In February 2016, the Financial Standards Accounting Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2016-02, Leases. Among other provisions, ASU 2016-02 requires the lease to record a right of use (ROU) asset
and lease Hlability on the balance sheet for an operating lease greater than 12 months. The lease liability will be
equal to the present value of the lease payments. An ROU asset will be based on the lease liability adjusted for
qualifying initial direct costs. The expense of operating leases under the new guidance will be recognized in the
income statement on a straight-line basis by adjusting the amortization of the ROU asset to produce straight-line
expense when combined with the interest expense of the lease liability. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021, with early application permitted.

The accounting and disclosures in these financial statements and notes follow the applicable portions of ASU 2016-
02.

This information is an integral part of the
accompanying combined financial statements
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 - RESTRICTED AND ESCROWED CASH

The regulatory agreement with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the
Organization requires that The Qaks LLC and the Giddings Corporation maintain certain cash reserves. The
consent of HUD is required before funds may be withdrawn from certain accounts. At December 31, 2024 and
2023, the following amounts were deposits in interest-bearing bank accounts or short-term certificates of deposit:

2024 2023

Reserve for replacement $ 482,326 $ 437,163
Reserve for residual receipts 508,216 507,545
Security deposits 35368 35,531
Total restricted cash - governmental 1,025,910 980.239
Other restricted cash — capital projects fund - 538 525
Other restricted cash — security deposits 39,348 75,419
Other restricted cash - reserve for repairs
and maintenance 923 1.103
Total restricted cash - non-governmental 40,809 77,047

Total restricted cash $ 1,066,719 $1.057.286

In addition, at December 31, 2024 and 2023, restricted cash also consisted of escrowed amounts for real estate
taxes and insurance as follows:

2024 2023
Taxes and insurance escrow § 249302 $ 205,706
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE

The Organization engages in a program to purchase HUD foreclosed houses to rehabilitate them for subsequent
resale to the public. All costs, including interest incurred while the houses are owned by the Organization, are
capitalized. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 the Organization had not incurred any costs in purchasing foreclosed
properties.

NOTE 3-FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on a determined measurement date. The
Organization reports its fair value measures using a three-level hierarchy that priorities the inputs used to measure
fair value.

This hierarchy, established by GAAP, requires that entities maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as

follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to
access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar
assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or inputs
that can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs should be used to measure the
fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs because they generally provide the most
reliable evidence of fair value. However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities that
the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example, unconditional promises of in-kind contributions).
The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization’s financial statements are initial measurement of
noncash gifts and recurring measurement of investments.
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HOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Fair Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 1
Investments:
Mutual Funds and Bonds $ 625527 $ 817.360
Total Investments $ 625527 $ 817.360

The following schedules summarize the investment return and its classification in the statement of activities for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Dividends/interest $ 41,847 $ 140,355
Investment gain (loss) (22,417) (46,882)
Fees (1,888) (6,655)
Total investment gain (loss) $. 17,542 $ 86818

As discussed in Note 3 to these financial statements, the Organization is required to report its fair value
measurements in one of three levels, which are based on the ability to observe in the market place the inputs to the
Organization’s valuation techniques.

Level 1, the most observable level of inputs, is for investments measured at quoted prices in active markets for
identical investments as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Level 2 is for investments measured using inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices for the
identical asset in inactive markets, and for investments measured at net asset value that can be redeemed in the near
{erm,

Level 3 is for investments measured using inputs that are unobservable, and is used in situations for which there is
little, if any, market activity for the investment.

The Organization determines fair value of mutual funds, by the published net asset value per unit at the end of the
last trading day of the year, which is the basis for transactions at that date.
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, L1C

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization rents offices from the Housing Authority of the Village of Oak Park, a municipal corporation,
and contracts with the Housing Authority for certain services.

The consolidated Statement of Financial Position reflects the following currently payable related party accounts
receivable and accounts payable regarding the previously mentioned corporations at December 31, 2024 and 2023
as follows:

2024 2023

Due from affiliates:
Housing Authority of the Village of Oak Park $ 2.169 $ 36

The consolidated statement of activities and changes in net assets reflect the following related party management,
maintenance and other administrative fees incurred at December 31, 2024 and 2023 as follows:

2024 2023
Office rent, management, maintenance
and other administrative reimbursables:
Housing Authority of the Village of Oak Park $ 55,473 $ 48,684

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Land $ 3,708,846 $ 3,704,846
Buildings 35,325,055 35,418,731
Building improvements 29,310,030 28,477,985
Furniture and equipment 1,620,864 1,509,826
Construction in progress 18,609,026 8,231,490
Office equipment 675,806 675.806
Total, at cost 89,249,627 78,018,684
Less accumulated depreciation (37.604,874) (35,.307,315)
Total $51.644.753 $42,711.369

Depreciation expense on property and equipment was $2,350,604 and $2,403,701 at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.
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HOLNICKI PETERSON & WIKTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 7-DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following: 2024 2023
Acquisition Loans Payable — Village of Oak Park:

Acquisition loan for the property at Lombard and Madison,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1051) $ 90,000 $ 90,000

Acquisition loan for the property at 1100 North Austin,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1211) 60,000 60,000

Acquisition loan for the property at Harrison and Lyman,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
{Asset 1214) 63,000 63,000

Acquisition loan for the property at Kenilworth and Pleasant,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
{Asset 1215) 474,827 474,827

Acquisition loan for the property at 411 South Harvey,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1216) 198,500 198,500

Acquisition loan for the property at 1022-24 North Austin,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1219) 108,000 108,000

Acquisition loan for the property at 1000 North Austin Avenue,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1220) 171,500 171,500

Acquisition loan for the property at 1118-1126 South Austin,
secured by that property, due December 31, 2026.
(Asset 1222) 468,000 468,000

Acquisition loan for the property at 14 North Austin, secured
by that property due December 31, 2026. (Asset 1334) 193,000 193,000
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
NOTE 7- DEBT (continued)
2024 2023
Acquisition loan for the property at 301-307 Harrison, secured
by that property, due April 3, 2031. (Asset 1317) $_ 750,000 $ 750.000
Total acquisition loans payable $2.576.827 $2576.827

All of the above acquisition loans are 0% interest loans. Each loan is payable in full at the date listed or, if the
subject property is sold, at the closing date of the sale. During 2022, the acquisition loan for the property at 7 W.
Van Buren was forgiven.

IFA Bonds Payable:
Series 2017 Bonds

On January 1, 2017, the Illinois Finance Authority retired the 2001 and 2006 bonds and issued the Organization
variable rate demand revenue bonds — Series 2017.

The bonds were used to retire the Series 2001 bonds of $13,000,000 and Series 2006 bonds of $4,000,000, provide
a project fund for rehabilitation costs of $2,174,271, and fund costs of issuance. Bond proceeds were $20,000,000.
The bonds’ maturity date is January 1, 2047, and has an initial rate of interest of 2.29% per annum. The interest
rate is effective from the date of closing through January 1, 2027. The balance due at December 31, 2024 and 2023
was $17,480,000 and $17,840,000, respectively. The balance at December 31, 2024 and 2023, net of unamortized
debt issuance costs of $124,970 and $175,119 respectively, was $17,355,030 and $17,664,881, respectively.
Quarterly payments are $90,000 plus interest.

The bonds are secured by the underlying properties and the assignment of rents. The bonds contain various
covenants which the Organization must meet on a quarterly basis. The Organization was in compliance with the
bonds’ covenants at December 31, 2024 and 2023. In 2024, 9 of the 20 buildings were released from the bond

issue.

‘Promissory Notes
2024 2023

Unsecured notes payable to the seller of the Schuman properties.
Interest is payable monthly at 5%. The rate is fixed for the first
five years of the loan term, then calculated as the lesser of 7% or
the ten-year treasury rate plus 2.75%, but in no event less than 5%.
The promissory notes are subordinated to the acquisition note

payable of $12,825,600. Notes are due February 2030. $ 1,565,700 1,565,700
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 7-DEBT (continued)

2024 2023
Mortgage Notes Payable — HUD:

HUD capital advance - Ryan Farrelly Project
(Asset 1002) $ 1.618.400 $ 1,618.400

Mortgage Notes Payable:

Note payable — bank, with monthly payments of $6,230,

including interest at 4.585%, final payment of $806,125

due August 2025, collateralized by the A & L LLC

buildings and an assignment of rents. $ 830,644 $ 865,889

Note payable — mortgage banking company, with monthly

payments of $18,814, including interest at 4.00%, final

payment due October 2050, collateralized by The Oaks

property and an assignment of rents  (Asset 1001). 3,632,336 3,711,088

Construction loan payable to the bank, with monthly payments
of interest due at the Federal Funds Effective Rate (5.33% and
4.33% at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively) plus 225
basis points. The loan is due October 25, 2025, with a
borrower’s option for two additional years, to October 23,
2027. The loan is secured by real estate under construction.
The Company may borrow up to $12,015,000, and is

required to contribute cash equity of $4,271,597 before
drawing on the loan. 8,506,490 2,532,837

Note payable — bank, with monthly payments of interest for

the first 18 months, then principal and interest payments

for eight years and six months, based on a 30-year amortization,
for the purchase of the Schuman properties. Interest is fixed at
at 2.99% per year. The Organization was required to enter into

an interest rate swap to fix the interest rate. 11,930,634 12,214,788
Total mortgage notes payable 24,900,104 19,324,602
Less unamortized debt issuance costs (198.584) (215,627)
Total mertgage notes payable $24,701,520 $19,108,975
Total long term debt 547,817,477 $42,534,783
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HOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 7 - DEBT (continued)

The Corporation refinanced its previous morigage for The Oaks, and in order to obtain a new HUD-Insured
Mortgage, the Corporation has agreed to renew its Housing Assistance Agreements (HAP) contract for a period
of 20 years. Essentially, it provides that the Oaks must be operated as originally agreed to (which includes the
special observation of various Federal laws), and nothing may be changed without approval from HUD. The
HAP contract expires in September 2035.

The HUD capital advance provided assistance in financing the construction of the Ryan Farrelly Apartments. The
capital advance shall bear no interest and is not required to be repaid so long as housing remains available to

eligible, very low income households for a period of 40 years in accordance with Section 811.

At December 31, 2024, the future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Mortgage
Acquisition Notes Promissory IDFA Bond Capital
Loans Pavable Notes Payable Advance Total
2025 h --- § 96,704,453 $ --- % 360,000 b --- $ 10,004,453
2026 --- 380,064 .- 360,000 --- 740,064
2027 1,826,827 393,263 --- 360,000 --- 2,580,090
2028 .- 406,925 --- 360,000 - 766,925
20298 --- 421,064 — 360,000 --- 781,064
2030 2034 750,000 10,949,423 1,565,700 1,800,000 1,618,400 16,683,523
2035 - 2039 “a- 662,796 --- 1,800,000 - 2,462,796
2040 - 2044 --- 809,274 --- 1,800,000 --- 2,609,274
2045 2049 --- 988,120 --- 10,280,000 - 11,268,120
2050 - 2052 --- 184,722 --- --- --- 184.722
Fotals $2.576,827 $ 24.900.104 $ 1.565.700 $17.480.,000 $ 1618400 $ 48141.031

The note payable of $11,930,634 and $12,214,788 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, for the
Schuman acquisition bears interest at 2.04% plus a leverage factor based on the one month LIBOR, which was
5.39644% and 0.1037% at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. However, the Organization entered into an
interest rate swap contract that effectively converts the interest rate on the note to a fixed rate of 2.99%. Under the
swap contract, the Organization pays interest at 2.99% and receives interest at 2.04% plus the leverage factor. The
swap is designed to hedge the risk of changes in interest payments on the note caused by changes in LIBOR.
Income under this agreement was $535,284 for the year ended December 31, 2024 and $513,474 for the year ended
December 31, 2023. The liability under this agreement was $0 and $0 at December 31, 2024 and 2023,

respectively.
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, 11C

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2024 AND 2023

NOTE § - LINE OF CREDIT

The Company obtained a secured revolving line of credit on April 6, 2021 with a financial institution in Illinois up
o a maximum amount of $1,000,000; with interest payable monthly at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (7.50%
and 8.50% at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively) plus 0.25%. This line of credit is secured by substantially
all of the Company’s assets. The line of credit matured on April 6, 2024 and was extended to April 6, 2026. The
outstanding balance at December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $0 and $1,000,000, respectively.

The Company obtained a second line of credit on September 25, 2024 with a financial institution in Iilinois up to a
maximum amount of $4,000,000; with interest payable monthly at the Federal Funds Effective Rate (4.48% at
December 31, 2024) plus 225 basis points per annum. The line of credit is secured by eight buildings owned by the
Company. The maturity date of the line is September 25, 2026. At December 31, 2024 the outstanding balance
was $1,500,000.

NOTE 9 - MULTI-EMPLOYER PENSION PLANS THAT PROVIDE PENSION BENEFITS

The Organization contributes to a multi-employer defined pension plan under the terms of an informal collective
bargaining agreement that covers its unjon represented employees. The risks of participating in the multi-employer
plan is different from single-employer plans in the following aspecis:

a. Assets contributed to the multi-employer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to
employees of other participating employers.

b.

b If a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may

be bome by the remaining participating employers.

If the Organization chooses to stop participating in some of its multi-employer plans, the Organization maybe
required to pay these plans an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal

liability.

The Organization’s participation in this plan for the annual periods ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is listed
below. Unless otherwise noted, the most recent Pension Plan Protection Act (PPA) zone status available in 2024
and 2023 is for the plan’s year end at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The zone status of the plan is based on
information that the Organization received from the plan and is certified by the plan’s actuary. Among other
factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65 percent funded; plans in the yellow zone are less than 80
percent funded; and the plans in the green zone are at least 80 percent funded. If a plan is not operating within
green zone status, it will either have a financial improvement plan (FIP) or rehabilitation plan (RP).

The Organization contributed $14,075 and $15,939 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively,
to the Local No. 1 Pension Fund EIN 51-6055057, as required by an informal collective bargaining agreement. At
July 1, 2023 and 2022, the Local No. 1 Pension Fund held a funded status of 107.1% and 105.6%, respectively.
The plan is currently operating with green zone status. The Organization was not required to pay a surcharge for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, lLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 10 - RETIREMENT PLANS

The Organization maintains a defined contribution retirement plan qualified under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code for all employees who have been employed for at least one year and worked over 1,000 hours.
Eligible employees may contribute a portion of their compensation to the plan, subject to Internal Revenue Service
limits. The Organization’s contributions to the plan are discretionary. The Organization paid an employer
contribution of 4% of eligible employee compensation for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.
Retirement costs for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were $54,645 and $40,790, respectively.

NOTE 11 - RENTAL STATISTICS

The Organization had the following rental statistics at December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Units % Units %%
Total number of units available 703 97.77 703 98.87%
Total of units under rehab 16 2.23 8 1.13
Total of units vacant (28) (3.89) (20} (2.81)
Total of rented units 691 96.11% 691 87.19%
Total of units managed,
but not owned 43 43

NOTE 12 - NET ASSETS

The net assets of the Organization are divided between net assets with restrictions and net assets without
restrictions.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the net assets (deficit) with restrictions consisted of the following:

2024 2023
The Oaks L1.C $(1,252,401) $(1,386,381)
Farrelly project - Giddings (1,081.885) (1.028.323)
Total $(2,334,286) $(2.414,704)

The restrictions on The Oaks LLC and Farrelly projects relate to the entire amount of net assets at December 31,
2024 and 2023. All of the revenues for the projects are considered restricted. The restrictions are considered to
expire when payments are made.
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 13 - OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENT

The Organization leases its administrative office space from a related party, The Housing Authority of the Village
of Oak Park, under an operating lease dated September 14, 1994, The lease was renewed on January 1, 2010 for an
additional five years with a monthly base rent of $9,860 that is increased 3% each year. On July 21, 2010, the lease
was amended further to reduce the monthly base rent to $9,005, increasing annually beginning in 2012 by 3% each
year. On December 10, 2014, the lease was extended until December 31, 2015, with a base rent of $121,620. On
December 9, 2015, the lease was extended for an additional five years through December 31, 2020. On December
9, 2020, the lease was extended for one year through December 31, 2021.

In 2022, the lease was extended for five years through December 31, 2026. Future minimum payments under the
lease are as follows:

2025 $ 54,09
2026 55,720
Total payments due 109,816
Less discount to present value (4,840)
Total operating liability $ 104976

Rent expense under the aforementioned lease for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, was $52,448 and
$52,448, respectively. The Organization is also responsible for all utilities relating to the leased premises.

NOTE 14 - CAPITAL LEASE PAYABLE
During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Organization entered into a new lease agreement which included the
buyout of a previous capital lease and has been accounted for as a capital lease. At December 31, 2024, the lease

term was less than one year, and management did not apply the provisions of ASU 2016-2 for this lease.

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, leased equipment consisted of the following:

2024 2023
Cost $§ 62,261 $ 62,261
Less accumulated depreciation (50,846) (38.354)
Net book value $§ 11415 $ 23.867
Depreciation expense $ 12452 $ 12,452
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KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 15-LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization’s financial assets as of the balance sheet date, reduced by amounts not

available for general use because of contractual, board, or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the balance
sheet date.

Financial assets at year end:

2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,643,967 $ 466,181
Investments 625,527 817,360
Restricted net assets (2.334,286) (2.414,704)
Total financial assets available to
meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $  (64,792) $(1,131,163)

NOTE 16 - TENANT RECEIVABLES

Tenant receivables for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 consist of:

2024 2023
Balance at January 1, $ 108,045 $ 207,215
Billings 9,647,682 0,128,335
Bad debt (203,951) (206,222)
Collections (9,403.895) (9,021,283)
Balance at December 31, $ 147,881 $ 108,045

NOTE 17 - CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits.
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant

credit risk on cash. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Organization’s uninsured bank balances totaled
$1,406,324 and $396,145, respectively.

25



KOLNICKI PETERSON & WIRTH, LLC

OAK PARK RESIDENCE CORPORATION AND AFFILIATED CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 18 - CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The Organization had interest payments of $1,053,446 and $1,123,853 in the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. The Organization paid $0 for taxes in the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

The Organization had financed $4,939,458 and $2,532,837 of construction in progress in the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 19 — CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

The Organization is redeveloping their property at 7 W. Van Buren. The Village of Oak Park provided
approval to the planned redevelopment and demolition in 2022. Financing and retention of contractors was
finalized in 2022. Construction commenced in late 2022 and was underway throughout 2024. Demolition and
redevelopment costs are recorded with construction in progress for 7 W. Van Buren. Total costs recorded with
construction in progress are $18,609,026 and $8,231,490 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,

respectively.
NOTE 20 - DEFERRED REVENUE

OPRC received a $2,000,000 grant from the Net Zero Energy program of the lllinois Clean Energy Community
Foundation (ICECF) in support of its construction of a new building located at 7 Van Buren (The Pierce). This
grant was to be paid out in three installments, with 30% ($600,000) to be paid out at project initiation, 30%
($600,000) to be paid out at project completion and lease up, and the remining 40% ($800,000) to be paid out
after 12 consecutive months of building net zero energy performance. Since the awarding of the initial 30%
($600,000 in project initiation grant funding), ICECF has ceased operations and, in accordance with OPRC’s
request, provided the remaining funding ($1,400,000) to OPRC in August of 2024. The second 30% ($600,000
in project completion grant funding) will be realized as income to OPRC m 2025 (consistent with the
completion and lease up of the new building). The final 40% ($800,000) will be retained by OPRC and will be
realized as income for accounting purposes following the achievement of 12 consecutive months of net zero

energy performance for the building.
NOTE 21 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In 2025, the Company will receive a tax credit of $1,006,973 as a solar energy investment credit related to the
development of the 7 W. Van Buren building, “The Pierce”. The building will open for leasing in March 2025.

This information is an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements.
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